
                     Amended AGENDA FOR  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Chambers 
                                                                                                          401 E Third Street 

Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Open Meeting starting at 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, July 8th, 2019 
 

Posted by 6:00 p.m., July 3rd, 2019 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes  
b. Payroll 
c. Staff Reports 

 
4. Presentation of Bills and Claims 
5. Citizen Participation 
6. Business: 

a) Acceptance of the minutes of the Planning Commission from its meeting held on Thursday, 
June 27, 2019. 

b) Consideration of an Ordinance Granting a special use permit to Don Grabbe for the property 
located at 831 lake Street  

c) Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the continuation of the nonconforming use at 200 E 
7th st as A B-2 Business District, General retail zoning district. 

d) Consideration of a Resolution Acknowledging the award of a grant from the Illinois Housing 
Development authority and the acceptance of the grant.  

e) Consideration of a Resolution to authorize the city Manager to enter into an agreement with 
Nyhart for the actuarial services 

f) Proclamation declaring July 10th 2019 Caleb Cleaver day 

7. Council Communications: 
8. Announcements:  
9. Adjournment 

 

 



 

 
 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: July 3, 2019 
From: Gary Bradley, City Manager 
To: Mayor & Council 
RE:       Council Meeting of Monday, July 8, 2019 
 
REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M. 
 

 
1. Street Improvements— The FAU project on East Street is well underway and should be 

substantially complete within a month.  There are two to three weeks of concrete work 
remaining.  The contracted completion date is August 17th plus any days cancelled due to 
inclement weather or required due to conditions in the field.  We anticipate completion of 
the general maintenance work by the end of next week, while the oil and chip work will be 
started and completed towards the end of the month.   

 
2. Viaduct—We are awaiting permit approval by the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Rail Road 

for the proposed interim improvements to the viaduct and hope to have such approval while 
the crew is still in town for the other projects in order to avoid mobilization costs if they 
are awarded the contract for the work.       

 
3. Traffic Sign/Speed Bump—At the last meeting, a resident raised the idea of adding a 

“Traffic sign” and speed bumps in the area of west Third Street.  According to our records, 
North Adams has been vacated in that area, while stop signs already exist on North Jackson 
and North Union where they intersect with West Third Street.  According to the Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, the intersections do not meet warrants for the installation 
of a stop signs on west Third at any of the intersections (stop signs are designed to control 
intersections, not regulate speed.  Improperly placed stop signs can actually serve to 
increase avoidable collisions).  The speed limit in the area is 30 miles per hour.  The City’s 
ordinance indicates that the speed limit in the community is 30 miles per hour, except where 
posted.  Thus, placement of a speed limit sign should have little to no impact on the speed 
of vehicles traveling in the area.  The City has not made a practice of using speed bumps 
as a traffic calming device, and the installation of such devices has waned over time 
because of the potential drawbacks that are often associated with them (cost, maintenance, 
damage to vehicles, increased rather than reduced speed in remote areas, etc.).  The Police 
Chief has requested additional patrols in the area during specified times in an attempt to 
curb the speeding that has been reported and the driving of unauthorized vehicles on City 
Streets that has also been reported.   

   
4. ADA Compliant Parking— At the last meeting, concerns were raised about three gas 

stations not having parking in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Staff 
investigated that matter and found that two of the stations have signs, but they are not 
appropriately displayed and neither have appropriately marked spaces.  The other station 



 
 

had neither a sign nor an appropriately marked space.  All three have been contacted and 
advised of their lack of compliance with the requirements of the ADA.  Our hope is that 
they will take the necessary steps to bring the parking into compliance soon.     

 
5. Office Hours at the Depot—At the last City Council meeting councilmember Yaklich 

inquired as to whether or not there were any actual office hours required for the tourism 
bureau.  Unlike the previous agreement with the Tourism Bureau, the one currently in place 
does require an actual scope of work in exchange for the use of the space, but does not 
identify specific hours during which said work must be completed.   

 
6. Waste Water Treatment Plant-  Bock has rented a machine, as they have in the past, that 

sucks up the sludge, then shoots it back out, essentially stirring up the mixture to  make it 
a more consistent liquid, which can then be spread on identified fields.  We expect that 
they’ll begin applying the sludge early next week.  That process will keep their 
maintenance staff busy for the foreseeable future, barring any issues at the plant that would 
pull them away to perform maintenance of the facilities or equipment there.   
  

 
 

7. IEPA— As noted in my last memo, staff, the City's Consulting engineer, and the City's 
Waste Water Treatment Plant Operator met with the IEPA regarding our compliance with 
our NPDES permit.  We have remained in compliance, and have filed or re-filed the reports 
that triggered the notice of violation.  We’ve also submitted a letter, at their request, to 
develop a compliance agreement resolving the chlorides issue that will let us know for sure 
what steps they are willing to take or will require of us to finally put that issue behind us.   

 
8. Fire Department Hiring—The testing process to establish a new hiring list kicked off last 

weekend.  We received a total of 29 applications.  Two candidates were eliminated for 
failing to show up to the testing.  Of the 27 remaining candidates, two failed the physical 
test.  Of the 25 remaining candidates. 11 passed the written examination and will be 
interviewed on July 16th and 17th, then the list will be finalized by totaling their scores and 
adding in points earned through veteran status, education, and special certifications.   

 
 



 
 

9. Boiler Property — Staff met with the owners of the property last week to discuss our 
concerns regarding the removal of infrastructure items and the potential improper closure 
of an industrial well located on the site, as well as their failure to remove certain junk and 
debris, including tires and concrete, as well as the current state of the former office building 
as an open and dangerous site.  Following the meeting with the property owners, we asked 
the City’s attorney to take certain steps to help ensure that the owners are held accountable 
for ensure the physical and environmental safety of the property.  Staff has continued to 
monitor the site.       

 
10. Joint Review Board— Representatives of two taxing jurisdictions, the Library District 

and the Kewanee School District, attended the meeting on Wednesday, June 26th.  The 
revenues, expenditures, and anticipated projects for each of the TIF Districts were reviewed.    

 
11. Consumer Confidence Report—The report, more commonly known as the Annual Water 

Quality Report, is complete and has been made available to all customers through a link 
that is provided on water bills.   

 
12. Vision Cost Breakdown—At the last City Council meeting, staff was asked to provide a 

breakdown of the costs for the software that is used to track the carts for the automated 
solid waste collection system.  Those costs are contained in a separate sheet that follows 
this memorandum.      
 



                                                              401 E. Third St. 
                                              Kewanee, IL  61443 
                                                 Phone:  309-852-2611 
      Fax: 309-856-6001   

 

 
 

     
     

    
      

     
  

 

VISION COST BREAKDOWN 
Software costs are as follows: 

• 2 Desktop users @ $125.00 each     $250 monthly 
• 1 Mobile distribution user @ $175.00   $175 monthly 
• 2 collection trucks @ $100 each    $200 monthly 

Sub Total   $625 monthly 
Or     $7,500 Annually 
Computer Service 57-44-537 

DATABASE SETUP/RFID READER SETUP/TRAINING FEE   $2500 

Computer Service 57-44-537 

Hardware/Truck Readers 

• 2 RFID readers   $7,600 each  $15,200 purchase 
• 2 Observation Panels  $850 each   $1,700 purchase 

  
Acquisition 39-73-840 

Cart Distribution and Service Tablet    

• Mobile Data charges  $75.06 Monthly  

      Telephone 57-44-552 



 

1 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 19-12 
   JUNE 24, 2019 
 

The City Council met in Council Chambers at 7:00 PM with the Mayor calling the meeting to 
order and the following answering to roll call: 
 

Steve Faber      Council Member 
Chris Colomer     Council Member 
Michael Yaklich     Council Member 
Michael Komnick     Council Member 
Gary Moore      Mayor 
 

News media present was as follows: 

Mike Helenthal Star Courier 
Sean Kernan WKEI 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 
 
Mayor Moore asked for a moment of silence for our troops still fighting overseas. 
 
Mayor Moore explained that the next items were placed on the consent agenda and were considered to 
be routine in nature to be passed as a whole with one vote of the Council. Mayor Moore requested that 
any member of the Council or the audience wishing to have an item removed from the consent agenda 
for individual consideration to make the request and the item would be removed and considered 
following the approval of the remaining consent items. The consent agenda included minutes from the 
June 10, 2019 Council Meeting, payroll for the pay period ending June 8, 2019 in the amount of 
$222,895.02, reports from Permits, and a request from the Hog Capital Barbeque, Inc. to use certain 
streets, parking lots, and public areas for the 66th annual Hog Capital of the World Festival from Friday, 
August 30th through Monday, September 2nd , 2019.  The consent agenda items were approved on a 
motion made by Council Member Colomer and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Roll call showed 
5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 

Bills submitted for approval totaling $360,030.82 were approved on a motion made by Council 
Member Komnick and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Bills from Auto Electric and 
Nationwide Retirement were questioned by Council Member Faber.  It was explained by Grounds 
Maintenance Manager Newton that the bill from Auto Electric for $1262.75 was to repair the A/C 
system in an ambulance.  Fleet Technician Vic Kluever was gone at the time and so the work was 
contracted out in order to keep a quick turnaround time for the ambulance.  City Manager Bradley 
explained that the Nationwide bill was a payout for the unused sick hours of a fireman who had 
recently retired.  Chief Shook reported that a side letter agreement to the Fire contract had been 
signed in April that allowed the buyout for firemen hired before 2010 but they go off the City 
insurance and cannot go back on.  Council Member Yaklich asked what the Vision readers were.  
City Manager Bradley explained that it was the hardware and software that the new automated 
garbage trucks use to read the carts when they are dumped.  Public Works Operations Manager 



 

2 
 

Rod Johnson explained that the bill included a $2500 set-up and training fee for the software and 
$16,900 was for the hardware for 2 trucks used with the software to read the RFID tags when the 
carts are dumped.  The readers also send information to City Hall identifying when a cart is not 
out, has overflow garbage, or is blocked and cannot be emptied.  Council Member Colomer asked 
where the budget stood for the purchase of the automated trucks, carts, etc.  Johnson stated we 
were still under budget.  Council Member Colomer requested the amount of annual fees to be 
paid in the future for the Vision software.  He also asked what the bill for internet training from 
Blue Line Learning Group was for.  Chief Ainley explained that it was for annual Haz Mat 
training.  Colomer also asked about the annual bill from K9 Training Institute.  Chief Ainley 
stated that it was for certification of the K9 dog and the revenue brought in by the dog more than 
covers the $1000 annual fee. Council Member Yaklich stated that he saw we paid an internet bill 
for the Depot and asked if there were office hours for the Henry County Tourism Bureau.  City 
Manager Bradley responded that there was an agreement with HCTB to lease the office space and 
they were to have office hours.  He was not sure if the agreement listed a specific number of 
hours or times that they had to be there.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

Mayor Moore then asked if anyone wished to speak regarding a non-agenda item.  Sammie Borst 
spoke about the need for speed bumps and a traffic sign on West Third Street behind the old 
Boiler Shop.  She complained that people were riding ATVs in the area and vehicles were 
speeding.  Council Member Faber asked if Chief Ainley could send extra patrol to the area.   

A citizen came forward asking to have a business re-established as a bar and grill.  Mayor Moore 
explained that by the time the request was received it was too late to include it on this agenda.  It 
will be addressed at the next meeting. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
A request from Shell for a proposal of a combination liquor license died due to a lack of a 
motion or second to approve it. 
 
A request for a fireworks permit for the annual July 4th fireworks display was approved on a 
motion made by Council Member Colomer and seconded by Council Member Faber.  Roll call 
showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed. 
 
Resolution #5172 authorizing the City Manager to execute an amendment to an agreement with 
Patriot Fuels, LLC was approved on a motion made by Council Member Komnick and 
seconded by Council Member Faber. Council Member Yaklich asked what Patriot Fuels owed 
us.  City Manager Bradley explained that they had paid $80,000 last year and had agreed to pay 
another $80,000 due to a mistake in the original agreement with the end date.  Roll call showed 
5 ayes, no nays. The motion passed. 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

 
Resolution #5171 ratifying certain expenditures for emergency repairs to the surge tanks 
at the North and South Water Treatment Plants was approved on a motion made by 
Council Member Faber and seconded by Council Member Komnick. Roll call showed 5 
ayes, no nays.  The motion passed.                                                                                                          

 
The minutes of the Zoning Board of Appeals was approved on a motion made by 
Council Member Komnick and seconded by Council Member Colomer.  Roll call 
showed 5 ayes, no nays. The motion passed. 

 
 
Ordinance #3969 granting a variance to Michael Nichols at 803 Page Street was 
approved on a motion made by Council Member Faber and seconded by Council 
Member Colomer.  Council Member Faber reported that he had drove by the property 
and could see no problems.  Mayor Moore agreed that he did not think it would cause an 
obstruction.  Council Member Komnick asked why there was one vote against the 
variance.  Community Development Director Edwards explained that one member 
voted no because the petitioner was not at the meeting and felt that he should have been 
there.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The motion passed.      
 
Ordinance #3970 granting a variance to Jose Chavez for the front yard at 1200 W. 
Division Street failed on a motion made by Council Member Faber and seconded by 
Council Member Yaklich.  Council Member Faber expressed his concern that there was 
no front yard for the variance.  Mayor Moore asked for clarification that this was not for 
an addition on the front of the house.  Community Development Director Edwards 
explained that no square footage was being added to the rooms of the house.  The 
variance was to add a screened in porch to the front of the house.  The variance is 
needed as the porch would no longer be considered an open terrace with the roof 
extended and could be considered an obstruction.   The property is already out of 
compliance with the zoning and setbacks.  The Zoning Board of Appeals voted against 
the variance as they felt it was going to be a vision obstruction.  Edwards suggested that 
possibly a roof over the porch without being screened in could be considered.  The 
Council and Mayor felt that the Zoning Board of Appeals had taken all of this into 
account when they voted.  Roll call showed no ayes, 5 nays.  The motion failed. 
 
Ordinance #3971 granting a variance to Jose Chavez for the rear yard at 1200 W. 
Division Street was approved on a motion made by Council Member Colomer and 
seconded by Council Member Komnick.   Council Member Faber felt there was no 
obstruction in the rear yard.  Mayor Moore stated that there was a privacy fence in place 
now and he did not feel there were any issues.  Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays.  The 
motion passed.   
 
Resolution #5170 authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with Stewart 
Spreading for bio solids removal and associated services for the Waste Water Treatment 
Plant failed on a motion made by Council Member Faber and seconded by Council 
Member Komnick.  Council Member Faber asked what the costs were.  Mayor Moore 



 

4 
 

explained that the initial costs would be higher up front and then less after the pond is 
completely drained.  He stated that Bock Inc. had informed them at their meeting that the 
pond needed to be completely drained in order to make repairs to the pond wall.  Council 
Member Yaklich felt that the Council had been kept in the dark and given limited options 
to solve the problem.  He explained that the Council had just been through a very intense 
budget session and cut money from the employee Christmas party 2 months earlier and 
now we were surprised with this problem.  Sludge removal is not a new process for the 
City of Kewanee.  We have spread sludge from the WWTP for the past 5 years and he 
asked what happened this year.  Mayor Moore reported that Bock Inc. was reluctant to 
throw anyone under the bus, but said the person they had been in contact with for the last 
year before this problem came about was no longer employed with the City of Kewanee.  
Mayor Moore stated that the City is in the same situation no matter whose fault it is.  
Council Member Faber stated that we need to make sure that a situation like this never 
happens again.  Council Member Colomer agreed that someone dropped the ball and this is 
costing the taxpayers a lot of money this year that we do not have.  City Manager Bradley 
reported that the total cost would be $83,500 to remove and apply 1.1 million gallons of 
sludge this year and approximately $60,000 per year on an ongoing basis with a CPI 
adjustment for each of those 3 years.  Bradley reported that we had budgeted $42,000 this 
year and $32,000 last year for sludge hauling.  Bradley also reported that there is projected 
to be a $117,796 surplus in the Sewer Fund at the end of this fiscal year and an ending 
balance well above the minimum fund balance.  Council Member Colomer asked if water 
and sewer rates will go up.  Discussion continued regarding the cost savings to Bock Inc. if 
Stewart Spreading is hired to remove the sludge.  Council Member Colomer asked if Bock 
Inc. has offered to share any of the costs if they are the ones saving money.  Council 
Member Yaklich expressed his concerns about having to make a decision based on the 
information currently available.  Council Member Colomer stated that he hated to be 
painted into a corner and asked if anyone has approached Bock Inc. to see if they are 
willing to share the costs.  The City Manager indicated that he had not.  Council Member 
Komnick agreed that the costs should be shared.  The council wanted additional 
information regarding costs if we are able to haul some of the sludge ourselves vs. Stewart 
Spreading hauling it all.  City Manager Bradley forwarded an email to the Council that had 
pricing for hauling out 600,000 gallons.   Roll call showed no ayes, 5 nays.  The motion 
failed. 
 
City Manager Bradley gave a presentation addressing a list of concerns distributed by 
Council Member Yaklich at the previous council meeting.   He spoke on a variety of topics 
such as sales tax analysis, private streets, road repairs, late charges, incentive programs, 
audit reports, costs for the Animal Control Facility, Ambulance Billing, Health Insurance 
Fund balances, and Financial Reporting.  City Manager Bradley quoted excerpts from past 
council meeting minutes and cited dates and documents provided in past council packets. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
Council Member Colomer praised all involved in the Nolan Keane baseball tournament 
this past weekend. 
 



 

5 
 

Council Member Komnick reported on a city in California that had fallen prey to a 
$600,000 ransomware attack.  He asked about the City’s training.  City Manager Bradley 
reported that some departments have attended training, but the City had no formal training 
for cyber security.  Council Member Komnick offered to come in and train staff if needed.   

 
Council Member Yaklich reported that he stopped by City Hall last Friday and gave 
Community Development Director Edwards a packet of complaints that he had received 
in the last couple of weeks and asked him if he could give a short report touching base 
on those items.  Edwards reported that he had sent out an email regarding the complaint 
about the fence that was installed with non-compliant materials.  He did give the 
homeowner information about getting a variance for that material.  His only concern was 
the wind load requirements for the solid material used.   Edwards reminded the council 
that the material used was not in compliance before the current fence ordinance was 
changed.  Not being able to prove when the fence was installed, Edwards felt the best 
option would be to have the homeowner apply for a variance rather than have to remove 
the materials and rebuild the fence.  Discussion continued with the other complaints 
regarding the number of pets at a residence and the definition of a kennel operator, 
various weed notices, and the property on Sixth Street where dirt was removed for the 
Ameren site.  Community Development Director Edwards explained that former City 
Engineer Dale Nobel had drafted all the documents and signed off on the Sixth Street 
project before he retired.   
 
Council Member Faber brought forward a complaint that there were 3 gas stations in the 
City that did not have designated handicap parking spaces.  He also asked the status of 
the Franklin School property.  The City Attorney has been asked to expedite this case.  
Council Member Faber asked Chief Ainley if he had any information he could share 
regarding home repair scams and the elderly.  Chief Ainley said that information had 
gone out to the newspaper and radio today regarding tips to keep from becoming a 
victim of fraud. 
 
Mayor Moore stated that he has received a lot of positive communication regarding the 
progress with the East Street project. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
City Hall and the Transfer Station will be closed on Thursday, July 4th.  There will be no 
change in Tuesday or Wednesday’s garbage routes.  Thursday’s route will be picked up 
on Friday. 
 
There being no further business, Council Member Colomer moved to adjourn the meeting 
and Council Member Faber seconded the motion. Roll call showed 5 ayes, no nays. The 
meeting adjourned at 9:13 PM. 
 
 

 
DEBORAH JOHNSON, DEPUTY CITY CLERK    DATE APPROVED 





















#

Work Order 

Date Date Returned 

Lot 

Width

Lot 

Depth Lot Area +/- 12"

Projected Costs To 

Contractor (Does not 

include Admin Fee) City Mowed

1 19- 000262 5/7/2019 5/14/2019 709 Florence St 64 150 9600 + $74.68 $0.00

2 19- 000263 5/7/2019 5/14/2019 805 N Vine St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

3 19- 000268 5/7/2019 5/14/2019 144 Tenney St 145 110 15950 + $124.09 $0.00

4 19- 000271 5/7/2019 5/14/2019 435 Carlton Dr 60 120 7200 + $60.00 $0.00

5 19- 000293 5/14/2019 5/21/2019 905 W Church St 186 144 26784 + $208.38 $0.00

6 19- 000307 5/16/2019 5/28/2019 402 N East St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

7 19- 000309 5/20/2019 5/28/2019 834 Franklin St 60 150 9000 + $50.00 $0.00

8 19- 000313 5/17/2019 5/28/2019 1106 Madison Ave 120 135 16200 + $126.03 $0.00

9 19- 000314 5/17/2019 5/28/2019 215 W Eighth St 60 50 3000 + $40.00 $0.00

10 19- 000316 5/17/2019 5/28/2019 212 N Grove St 12197 + $94.84 $0.00

11 19- 000318 5/20/2019 5/28/2019 221 Tenney St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

12 19- 000325 5/20/2019 5/28/2019 439 W Division St 62 168 10416 + $81.03 $0.00

13 19- 000273 5/28/2019 6/4/2019 624 Willard St 67 125 8375 + $70.00 $0.00

14 19- 000281 5/28/2019 6/5/2019 600 N Lexington Ave 69525 + $540.90 $0.00

15 19- 000337 5/24/2019 6/3/2019 827 W Fourth St 86 140.75 12104.5 + $94.30 $0.00

16 19- 000340 5/24/2019 6/2/2019 1005 N Wilbur St 55 150 8250 + $70.00 $0.00

17 19- 000344 5/24/2019 6/2/2019 415 S Chestnut St 75 203 15225 + $118.45 $0.00

18 19- 000346 5/29/2019 6/11/2019 305 N Grove St 50 200 10000 + $77.80 $0.00

19 19- 000349 5/30/2019 6/4/2019 701 S Chestnut ** St 131.5 232.5 30573.75 +  ** $0.00 $130.00

20 19- 000356 5/28/2019 6/3/2019 842 Birch Pl 115 130 14950 + $116.31 $0.00

21 19- 000360 5/28/2019 6/3/2019 519 Pine St 52 112.5 5850 + $50.00 $0.00

22 19- 000364 5/28/2019 6/2/2019 214 E 6th St 55 100 5500 + $50.00 $0.00

23 19- 000365 5/28/2019 6/2/2019 611 N Elm St 76 120 9120 + $50.00 $0.00

24 19- 000366 5/31/2019 6/11/2019 621 N Walnut St 15000 + $116.70 $0.00

25 19- 000369 5/30/2019 6/11/2019 614 Willow St 24393 + $81.06 $0.00

26 19- 000385 5/31/2019 6/11/2019 624 N Elm St 120 120 14400 + $112.03 $0.00

27 19- 000268 6/3/2019 6/11/2019 144 Tenney St 145 110 15950 + $124.09 $0.00

28 19- 000375 5/31/2019 6/28/2019 100 Goodrich  ** St 60 120 7200 +  ** $0.00 $65.00

29 19- 000387 5/31/2019 6/28/2019 1022 N East  ** St 62 351 21762 +  ** $0.00 $65.00

30 19- 000318 6/7/2019 6/18/2019 221 Tenney St 60 100 6000 + $45.00 $0.00

31 19- 000404 6/7/2019 6/28/2019 721 N Vine  ** St 112 57 6384 +  ** $0.00 $130.00

32 19- 000405 6/7/2019 6/18/2019 1205 Roseview Ave 42 85 3570 + $50.00 $0.00

33 19- 000407 6/7/2019 6/18/2019 317 N Park St 40 131 5240 + $50.00 $0.00

34 19- 000409 6/10/2019 6/18/2019 506 O'dea St 42 85 3570 + $40.00 $0.00

35 19- 000410 6/10/2019 6/18/2019 411 W 4th St 64 150 9600 + $74.69 $0.00

36 19- 000263 6/11/2019 6/28/2019 805 N Vine  ** St 60 100 6000 +  ** $0.00 $130.00

37 19- 000424 6/11/2019 6/18/2019 524 W 4th St 50 150 7500 + $60.00 $0.00

38 19- 000429 6/11/2019 6/18/2019 824 Madison Ave 88 135 11880 + $92.42 $0.00

39 19- 000433 6/11/2019 1021 Rose ** St 9000 +  ** $0.00 $65.00

40 19- 000434 6/11/2019 1027 Rose ** St 3000 +  ** $0.00 $65.00

41 19- 000435 6/13/2019 6/25/2019 209 Eustis St 50 75 3750 + $50.00 $0.00

Mowing Program Budget/Cost Projection

File Number Address



42 19- 000438 6/13/2019 6/25/2019 923 Simpson Ave 64 166 10624 + $82.65 $0.00

43 19- 000395 6/14/2019 325 W 4th St 16034 + $124.46 $0.00

44 19- 000444 6/14/2019 6/25/2019 606 E 11th St 102 150 15300 + $119.03 $0.00

45 19- 000445 6/14/2019 620 E 11th St 84 150 12600 + $98.01 $0.00

46 19- 000448 6/17/2019 6/25/2019 121 S Jackson St 48 165 7920 + $70.00 $0.00

47 19- 000335 6/18/2019 6/25/2019 328 Rice St 56 75 4200 + $50.00 $0.00

48 19- 000458 6/18/2019 6/25/2019 522 E Seventh St 57 176 10032 + $78.05 $0.00

49 19- 000462 6/18/2019 6/25/2019 905 Elmwood Ave 12960 + $100.83 $0.00

50 19- 000474 6/18/2019 6/25/2019 125 Lyle St 33 148 4884 + $50.00 $0.00

51 19- 000495 6/21/2019 7/2/2019 419 S Grove St 60 120 7200 + $60.00 $0.00

52 19- 000502 6/24/2019 7/2/2019 916 N Vine St 60 150 9000 + $70.00 $0.00

53 19- 000307 6/25/2019 7/2/2019 402 N East St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

54 19- 000392 6/25/2019 7/2/2019 808 E 4th St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

55 19- 000406 6/25/2019 7/2/2019 800 Prairie Ave 60 120 7200 + $60.00 $0.00

56 19- 000510 6/25/2019 7/2/2019 108 W Church St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

57 19- 000313 6/27/2019 7/2/2019 1106 Madison Ave 120 135 16200 + $126.03 $0.00

58 19- 000528 6/28/2019 410 E Eighth St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

59 19- 000522 6/28/2019 321 N Boss St 60 150 9000 + $70.00 $0.00

60 19- 000520 6/28/2019 315 Elliott St 60 120 7200 + $60.00 $0.00

61 19- 000513 6/27/2019 207 N Elm St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

62 19- 000521 6/27/2019 827 Wilson St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

63 19- 000427 6/27/2019 721 N Chestnut St 60 100 6000 + $50.00 $0.00

64 19- 000536 7/11/2019 106 N Boss St 60 150 9000 + $70.00 $0.00

65 19- 000535 7/9/2019 104 N Boss St 60 150 9000 + $70.00 $0.00

$4,851.86 $650.00

$7,148.14Approved Budget for 2019 mowing season:    $12000

**  Mowed by City Staff

Total to date:

Remaining Budget:



 SYS DATE:07/03/19                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:06
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 210
 DATE: 04/18/19                  Thursday April 18,2019                        PAGE   1

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 AEP ENERGY                                                  62.85
    D06/28/19PPP      01-52-571        BERRIEN PARL ELECTRICAL                     7.96
    D062819CAF        01-21-539        ANIMAL POUND ELECTRICAL                    54.89

 01 ALL SEASONS LAWN CARE                                     3150.34
    142               01-65-549        WEED MOWING CONTRACT                     3150.34

 01 AMEREN ILLINOIS                                            146.49
    D02719BP          01-52-571        BERRIEN PARK                               44.52
    D082719P          01-21-539        POUND ELECTRICTY                          101.97

 01 AZAVAR AUDIT SOLUTIONS                                       2.32
    147740            01-11-929        CONTINGENCY-ELECTRIC AUDIT                  2.32

 01 B & B PRINTING                                              71.06
    23108             52-93-652        WWTP-SHIPPING CHARGE                       14.50
    23108             52-93-652        WWTP SHIPPING CHARGES                      16.83
    23123             52-93-652        WWTP-SHIPPING CHARGE                       15.50
    23124             01-21-551        POLICE SHIPPING CHARGES                    24.23

 01 BARASH & EVERETT, LLC                                     6482.00
    D07022019         21-11-533        MAY RETAINER                             6250.00
    D07022019         21-11-533        REIMB EXPS & FEES                         232.00

 01 BREEDLOVE'S SPORTING GOODS                                 284.95
    37556             01-22-471        FIRE APPAREL                              239.00
    37589             01-22-471        FIRE APPAREL                               45.95

 01 CAMBRIDGE TELCOM SERVICES INC                              760.00
    KEW-004-0026      01-11-537        CITY OF KEWANEE INTERNET                  485.00
    KEW-004-0036      01-21-552        INTERNET POLICE                           275.00

 01 COLWELL, BRENT                                             250.00
    785237            01-65-549        915 PLEASANT                               50.00
    785238            01-65-549        SECOND ST                                  50.00
    785239            01-65-549        915 PLEASANT                               25.00
    785240            01-65-549        ELECTRICLA INSPECTION                      25.00
    785241            01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00
    785242            01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00

 01 CORE & MAIN LP                                            4425.54
    K10794            51-42-615        WATER-ROMAX COUPLERS                     1300.00
    K10794            51-93-619        WTP ROMAX COUPLERS                       1480.00
    K641672           51-42-615        OFFSET PIPE WRENCH                        205.54
    K685819           51-42-615        METERS                                    720.00
    K685819           52-43-615        METERS                                    720.00

 01 CULLIGAN OF KEWANEE                                        105.30
    D061619           52-93-652        WATER-WWTP LAB                            105.30

 01 EAGLE ENTERPRISES RECYCLING IN                            2419.50
    D063019           57-44-583        JUNE RECYCLING                           2419.50

 01 EJ EQUIPMENT INC                                          1669.42
    P17092            52-43-512        TRANDSUCER AND CABLE                     1330.95
    P17163            52-43-512        HOSES AND FITINGS                         338.47

 01 FEUCHT, EARL & MARGARET                                     16.28
    DO62019           51-42-929        REFUND OF OVERPAYMENT                      16.28



 SYS DATE:07/03/19                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:06
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 210
 DATE: 04/18/19                  Thursday April 18,2019                        PAGE   2

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 FRIENDS OF THE ANIMALS                                    1333.33
    628677            01-21-539        SEMI-MONTHLY CONTRACT                    1333.33

 01 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPOR                            1510.03
    D061919           01-41-552        PW LOCAL PHONE                            224.53
    D061919           54-54-552        PARKS LOCAL PHONE                          37.68
    D061919           01-11-552        F&A LOCAL PHONE                           281.63
    D061919           01-22-552        FIRE LOCAL PHONE                          187.22
    D061919           52-93-552        WWTP LOCAL PHONE                          121.87
    D061919           57-44-552        SANIT-LOCAL PHONE                          43.89
    D061919           51-93-552        WTP LOCAL PHONE                            50.90
    D061919           01-21-552        POLICE-LOCAL PHONE                         62.39
    D061919           58-36-552        CEMETERY LOCAL PHONE                       83.96
    D061919           62-45-552        FLEET LOCAL PHONE                          55.73
    D061919P          01-21-552        POLICE LOCAL PHONE                        360.23

 01 GUSTAFSON FORD                                              16.99
    6518              62-45-613        GAS CAP                                    16.99

 01 HAYES, RAY JR                                              210.00
    5684              51-42-515        PUSH SPOILS                               210.00

 01 HEART TECHNOLOGIES INC                                     375.00
    25982             38-71-549        MOVING PHONE EXT                          375.00

 01 HOERR CONSTRUCTION INC                                   42307.70
    119-393           33-49-850        CIP LINER AND LATERALS                  42307.70

 01 ILLINOIS TAX INCREMENT ASSOCIA                             650.00
    673999            02-61-561        2019-20 MEMBERSHIP DUES                   650.00

 01 ILLINOIS EPA                                             17500.00
    2019-2020         52-93-542        ANNUAL NDPED FEE                        17500.00

 01 JS & KG INC                                                 61.95
    DO62119           51-42-929        REFUND OF OVERPAY FOR 4012330002           61.95

 01 KEWANEE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE                                 80.00
    4224              01-65-519        DOWNTOWN CLEANUP                           80.00

 01 KEWANEE FIRE PENSION FUND                               309695.55
    2019-1            71-14-462        1ST PROPRTY TAX DIST                   309695.55

 01 KEWANEE POLICE PENSION FUND                             359118.87
    2019-1            72-14-462        1ST DIST PROPERTY TAX                  359118.87

 01 LAMCO                                                      850.00
    D062819           01-41-581        REMOVE TREE STUMP                         850.00

 01 LAVERDIERE CONSTRUCTION INC                               6250.00
    A10502            51-93-512        NWTP SURGE TANKS                         6250.00

 01 MCKESSON MEDICAL SURGICAL                                  133.72
    56659221          01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                          133.72

 01 OFFICE SPECIALISTS INC                                     437.86
    1049532-0         01-11-537        COMPUTER SERVICES                          46.24
    1052457-0         01-11-651        OFFICE SUPPLIES                            57.45
    1052457-0         01-41-651        OFFICE SUPPLIES                            57.44
    1052457-0         51-42-651        OFFICE SUPPLIES                            57.45
    1052457-0         52-43-651        OFFICE SUPPLIES                            57.44



 SYS DATE:07/03/19                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:06
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 210
 DATE: 04/18/19                  Thursday April 18,2019                        PAGE   3

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    1053944-0         01-41-537.4      CANON PLOT PRINTER                         80.92
    1053944-0         01-41-537        CANON PLOT PRINTER                         40.46
    1053944-0         01-65-537        CANON PLOT PRINTER                         40.46

 01 PANTHER UNIFORMS INC                                       453.75
    22514             01-21-471        AINLEY-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE                  453.75

 01 PDC LABORATORIES INC                                        18.00
    I9373416          51-93-542        WATER TESTING                              18.00

 01 PEART PROPERTIES                                          1495.83
    D060119           38-71-549        JANITORIAL SERVICES                      1495.83

 01 PERFORMANCE PIPELINING, INC                              13900.00
    1912.2            51-93-512        surge tank liners                       13900.00

 01 PEST DOCTOR                                                 20.00
    27738             01-22-580        STATION 2 PEST CONTROL                     20.00

 01 POLICE PETTY CASH                                          154.03
    D062819           01-21-929        MEALS-INVESTIGATORS/SHOOTING               87.68
    D062819           01-21-562        TRAINING MEAL EXPENSE                      54.95
    D062819           01-21-551        POSTAGE EXPENSE                            11.40

 01 RATLIFF BROS & CO                                         2060.00
    15395             52-43-515        SEWER REPAIR-EAST WILLOW ST              2060.00

 01 RDJ SPECIALTIES INC                                        282.90
    110650            01-22-658        PLASTIC CLIP ON BADGES                    282.90

 01 STAR-COURIER                                               195.88
    4061              01-11-541        ZONING BOARD NOTICE                        68.00
    D030919           01-11-541        POLICE TESTING AD                         127.88

 01 TORRES, RAVLITO                                               .81
    D066019           51-42-929        REFUND OF OVERPAYMENT 3014215001             .81

 01 TRIANGLE CONCRETE INC                                     1091.00
    9666              52-43-615        HY-EARLY-EAST ST SEWER                    540.00
    9666              52-43-517        HY-EARLY-INLET REPAIRS                    551.00

 01 U.S. CELLULAR                                              433.56
    316122306         01-41-552        PW CELLULAR SERVICE                       156.93
    316122306         01-11-552        CM CELLULAR SERVICE                        60.01
    316122306         58-36-552        CEM CELLULAR SERVICE                       52.31
    316122306         01-65-552        CD CELLULAR SERVICE                        96.19
    316122306         58-36-552        FP WIFI                                    22.94
    316122306         54-54-552        CEMETERY WIFI                              22.94
    316122306         57-44-552        SANITATION TABLET                          22.24

 01 U.S. POSTAL SERVICE                                       4500.00
    D062519           51-42-551        PERMIT PISTAGE ACCT                      1500.00
    D062519           52-43-551        PERMIT PISTAGE ACCT                      1500.00
    D062519           57-44-551        PERMIT PISTAGE ACCT                      1500.00

 01 VERIZON WIRELESS                                           781.07
    9832069027        01-21-552        POLICE AND FIRE CELLULAR                  797.00
    9832811124        01-21-552        CREDIT/OVERPAY                             15.93-

 01 WALMART COMMUNITY                                          235.30
    40027             01-22-652        FIRE-OPER SUPS                             33.79
    4896              01-21-651        POLICE OFFICE SUP                          49.16



 SYS DATE:07/03/19                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:06
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 210
 DATE: 04/18/19                  Thursday April 18,2019                        PAGE   4

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    5695              01-22-654        FIRE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                   43.87
    8262              01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                            8.88
    8262              01-22-654        FIRE JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                   19.92
    8273              38-71-611        CITY HALL SUPPLIES                         79.68

 01 WALZ LABEL & MAILING SYSTEMS                               180.00
    3738 A            01-11-512        POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE                     180.00

 01 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST                                     480.00
    840446774-1       01-21-553        CRIMINAL LAW PROCEDURES                   480.00

 01 WOODY, STEVE                                               150.00
    1016              01-21-455        PRE-EMPLY POLYGRAPH KD                    150.00

 01 WORD SYSTEMS INC                                          2563.97
    IN25242           01-21-512        MAINTENCE CONTRACT                       2563.97

   **  TOTAL CHECKS TO BE ISSUED                            789373.15



 SYS DATE:07/03/19                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:06
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 210
 DATE: 04/18/19                  Thursday April 18,2019                        PAGE   5

     FUND                                                      AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

    GENERAL FUND                                             14247.55

    ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT                                       650.00

    PUBLIC BENEFITS FUND                                      6482.00

    SEWER IMPROVEMENT                                        42307.70

    CAPITAL MAINTENANCE/MUN. BLDG.                            1950.51

    WATER FUND                                               25770.93

    SEWER FUND                                               24871.86

    FRANCIS PARK                                                60.62

    SANITATION                                                3985.63

    CEMETERY FUND                                              159.21

    CENTRAL MAINTENANCE                                         72.72

    FIRE PENSION FUND                                       309695.55

    POLICE PENSION FUND                                     359118.87

      *** GRAND TOTAL ***                                   789373.15

          TOTAL FOR REGULAR CHECKS:                        788,039.82
          TOTAL FOR DIRECT PAY VENDORS:                      1,333.33



 SYS DATE:07/03/19                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:06
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
 DATE: 04/18/19                  Thursday April 18,2019                        PAGE   6

=======================================================================================
                                A/P MANUAL CHECK POSTING LIST
    POSTINGS FROM ALL CHECK REGISTRATION RUNS(NR) SINCE LAST CHECK VOUCHER RUN(NCR)
=======================================================================================
 PAYABLE TO                     CHECK DATE    CHECK NO         AMOUNT
   REG#  INV NO          G/L NUMBER      DESCRIPTION                              DISTR
=======================================================================================
 01 BNSF RAILWAY CO               06/24/19    56194            800.00
    399  D062119         47-84-890       VIADUCT APPL/PERMIT FEE                 800.00

 15 GALESBURG BUILDERS SUPPLY     07/02/19    1054            2828.75
    400  22151           15-41-514       MFT-COLD PATCH MIX                     2828.75

 74 HEALTH CARE SERVICE CORPORATIO07/03/19    1337A         113968.06
    400  SD 06/19        74-14-451       HEALTH INS CLAIMS                    108930.87
    400  SD 06/19        74-14-452       STOP LOSS SPECIFIC                     5037.19

 74 MUTUAL OF OMAHA               06/26/19    1331A             87.57
    399  000959024586    74-14-452       LIFE/AD&D INS-7/19                       87.57

 74 SISCO                         06/26/19    1333A           1107.83
    399  D062119         74-14-451       DENTAL/VISION CLAIMS                   1107.83

 74 SISCO                         07/01/19    1334A           6708.68
    400  197062          74-14-451       DENTAL/VISION ADMIN FEES                408.68
    400  197062          74-14-549       BROKER FEES                            6300.00

 74 SISCO                         07/02/19    1336A           1174.46
    400  D062819         74-14-451       DENTAL/VISION CLAIMS                   1174.46

 74 YMCA                          06/26/19    1332A             76.78
    399  JUNE 2019       74-14-451       I'M 4 FITNESS MBRSHP %                   76.78

   **  TOTAL MANUAL CHECKS REGISTERED                       126752.13

=======================================================================================
   REPORT SUMMARY
=======================================================================================
   CASH             CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    01             789373.15               800.00           790173.15
    15                   .00              2828.75             2828.75
    74                   .00            123123.38           123123.38
                  ------------         ------------        ------------
  TOTAL CASH       789373.15            126752.13           916125.28



 SYS DATE:07/03/19                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:09:06
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
 DATE: 04/18/19                  Thursday April 18,2019                        PAGE   7

=======================================================================================
                                A/P MANUAL CHECK POSTING LIST
    POSTINGS FROM ALL CHECK REGISTRATION RUNS(NR) SINCE LAST CHECK VOUCHER RUN(NCR)
=======================================================================================
 PAYABLE TO                     CHECK DATE    CHECK NO         AMOUNT
   REG#  INV NO          G/L NUMBER      DESCRIPTION                              DISTR
=======================================================================================
=======================================================================================
   DISTR            CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    01              14247.55                  .00            14247.55
    02                650.00                  .00              650.00
    15                   .00              2828.75             2828.75
    21               6482.00                  .00             6482.00
    33              42307.70                  .00            42307.70
    38               1950.51                  .00             1950.51
    47                   .00               800.00              800.00
    51              25770.93                  .00            25770.93
    52              24871.86                  .00            24871.86
    54                 60.62                  .00               60.62
    57               3985.63                  .00             3985.63
    58                159.21                  .00              159.21
    62                 72.72                  .00               72.72
    71             309695.55                  .00           309695.55
    72             359118.87                  .00           359118.87
    74                   .00            123123.38           123123.38
                  ------------         ------------        ------------
  TOTAL DISTR      789373.15            126752.13           916125.28















   

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE July 8, 2019 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

ORDINANCE # 3972 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of an Ordinance granting a Special 
Use permit to Don Grabbe for a beer garden for 
property located at 831 Lake St. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A, including recurring 
charges 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To allow a beer garden/outdoor eating area at 
Guppy’s Lake, 831 Lake St.   

BACKGROUND The proposed location currently houses a tavern.    
Don Grabbe has purchased the property and has 
recently remodeled the interior of the building.  There 
is an existing beer garden area that is also being 
remodeled.  Grabbe has temporarily removed part of 
the fencing to rebuild a deck.  Once the deck is 
completed, Grabbe will be replacing the fence and 
has no plans to use the area as a beer garden until 
said fence is installed. 

SPECIAL NOTES  

ANALYSIS I do not see any items of concern with this Special 
Use Permit request.   



   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Legal notice was published in the Star Courier, Post 
cards were mailed to all persons owning land within 
300 feet of 831 Lake St. Plan Commission meeting 
agenda was posted and published .  Plan 
Commission Hearing was held on June 27, 2019. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

After discussing the facts and testimony presented, 
the Plan Commission recommends, by a vote of eight 
in favor of the application, none opposed to the 
application, one absent, that the application to grant a 
Special Use Permit to allow a beer garden/outdoor 
eatery be approved by the City Council.  Specifically, 
the Plan Commission recommends that a Special 
Use Permit allowing a beer garden/outdoor eatery at 
831 Lake St. be granted to Don Grabbe. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Plan Commission Minutes 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 3972 
 

ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT TO DON GRABBE FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 831 LAKE STREET IN THE CITY OF KEWANEE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE, 
ILLINOIS IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION ONE:   The City Council finds that a Petition has heretofore been filed by 

Don Grabbe with the City Clerk, directed to the Plan Commission and the City 
Council requesting that a Special Use Permit to allow establishment and operation 
of a beer garden / outdoor eating area be granted, on the following described real 
estate, to-wit: 
LT 3 JIM KELLYS SUB PT BLK 3 JOHN ZANGS ADD CITY OF KEWANEE, Henry County, Illinois. 
This land is commonly known as 831 Lake Street. 

 
SECTION TWO:   The Plan Commission conducted a hearing upon said Petition on 

Thursday, June 27,2019, pursuant to notice published in the Kewanee Star 
Courier according to law, at which time and place the Commission heard the 
statements of the Petitioners.  There were no objectors. 

 
SECTION THREE: The Plan Commission has recommended, by a vote of eight in 

favor, none opposed, one absent, to the City Council, that a Special Use Permit to 
allow establishment and operation of a beer garden / outdoor eating area, be 
granted for the land described in Section One hereof. 

 
SECTION FOUR:    The recommendation of the Plan Commission be, and the same is, 

hereby accepted and approved. 
 
SECTION FIVE:    A Special Use Permit shall be and hereby is granted to Don Grabbe 

to allow establishment and operation of a beer garden / outdoor eating area on the 
premises described in Section One hereof, in conformance with the stipulations 
enumerated in Section Six hereof. 

 

SECTION SIX:    The following Six (6) stipulations and restrictions are hereby placed 
upon the proposed use on the premises described in Section One hereof: 

1. The Special Use Permit is granted to Don Grabbe and Guppy’s Lake, LLC., only, 
and is not transferable to any successor property owners and/or operators of a 
restaurant serving alcohol on the site.   

2. The configuration and uses of various parts of the beer garden/outdoor eating area 
shall remain in substantial compliance with the floor plan submitted along with 
the petition for the special use permit. 

3. No package sale of liquor or carryout sale of liquor is allowed.  



Page 2 of 2 
Ordinance No. xxxx, July 8, 2019 
Special Use Permit 831 Lake St. Beer Garden 

4. The proposed beer garden/outdoor eating area shall comply with Chapter 111 
Alcoholic Liquor and §155.117 Beer Garden/Outdoor Eating Area of the City 
Code. 

5. Any violations of the terms and conditions of the Special Use Permit are subject 
to review and possible revocation by the Plan Commission and City Council. 

6. The beer garden/outdoor eating area shall close at shall be closed at 11:00 pm 
Sunday through Thursday and at midnight Friday and Saturday. 

 
 
SECTION SEVEN:    This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 

its passage and approval as provided by law. 
 
 
Passed by the City Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois, and this 8th day of July, 
2019. 
 
ATTEST:   
   
   
                                  , City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Michael Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     
 



   

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE July 8, 2019 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #  5173 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution granting a continuance 
of non-conforming use to Jodi Pettitt at 200 E 
Seventh Street for the operation of a Bar & Grill 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To allow a continuance of a lawful, nonconforming 
use as B2 – Business District, General Retail within a 
R2 – One Family Dwelling District.   



   

BACKGROUND Jodi Pettitt inquired about opening a Bar & Grill at 
200 E Seventh St. which she owns.  She was 
advised that the property had at one time a lawful, 
nonconforming use which had been abandoned.  
Pettitt was given the necessary form and explained 
the process to request a continuance of 
nonconforming use per an amendment to the 
ordinance #3849 that was passed by the City Council 
unanimously on October 11, 2016 .   
The street file contains letters and misc. permits 
dating back to November 1992 from the City 
suggesting the location had held the lawful 
nonconforming use for numerous years until the use 
was abandoned.  The water account for this address 
suggests that the use was abandoned around April of 
2012.   

SPECIAL NOTES If the Council chooses to allow the continuance of 
nonconforming use, Pettitt would be required to 
obtain the typical Special Use Permit for liquor 
license and beer garden from the normal Plan 
Commission and City Council process.  The property 
would also require inspections from building, 
electrical and plumbing and Kewanee Fire Dept.  Any 
shortfalls from these inspections will required 
correction prior to receiving a Liquor License and 
opening for business.   

ANALYSIS By granting this continuance of nonconforming use to 
the Jodi Pettitt, the City will be welcoming another 
new small business into a building that has been 
vacant since April 2012.  The continuance of 
nonconforming use would then be allowed to 
continue until such time as the building becomes 
vacant for a period of 12 months. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 



   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends that all Council members and 
Mayor perform their own on site reviews of the 
property before this meeting and voting on this 
resolution. 
It has been noted by Pettitt on the application that 
numerous improvements to the property are planned. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

N/A 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Request for Continuance of Nonconforming Use 
application along with photos provided by Pettitt. 

 

































RESOLUTION NO. 5173 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONTINUATION OF THE NONCONFORMING 
USE AT 200 E SEVENTH STREET AS A B-2 BUSINESS DISTRICT, GENERAL RETAIL  
ZONING DISTRICT AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL 
FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council believes that it is important to remain business friendly and be 

able to consider the possibility of allowing a nonconforming use to continue if the 
nonconforming use is not detrimental to the surrounding properties and zoning 
district in which the nonconforming use is located; and,  

WHEREAS,  the City Council passed Ordinance #3849 establishing an exception allowing the 
City Council to grant the re-establishment of a nonconforming use that may be 
considered discontinued or abandoned; and    

WHEREAS, the property at 200 East Seventh Street has been a nonconforming use business, 
which is currently considered discontinued or abandoned; and  

WHEREAS,  the property owner and has requested a continuance of the nonconforming use to 
operate a Bar & Grill at this location; and  

WHEREAS,  the building on the property appears to be purpose built or modified for 
commercial use; and  

WHEREAS,  the City Council finds it in the best interest of the community to re-establish the 
nonconforming use of the property at 200 East Seventh Street.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE KEWANEE CITY COUNCIL, IN 
COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 The City Council grants the request for re-establishment of the nonconforming B-

2 zoning for the property at 200 East Seventh Street. 
 
Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law.   
 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 8th day of July, 2019. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
                                , City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Michael Komnick     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     
 



   

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE July 8, 2019 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

RESOLUTION # 5174 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution accepting the APP 
Grant award from the Illinois Housing Development 
Authority 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A, including recurring 
charges 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE This is one of many Due Diligence items that the City 
must perform and provide to the IHDA in order to 
close on the Grant on July 26, 2019 for the funds to 
become available.   

BACKGROUND  

SPECIAL NOTES This resolution was given to staff as a recommended 
template to use. 

ANALYSIS  

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

What steps were taken to comply with public notice 
requirements and foster transparency? 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

Often N/A, but sometimes a board, committee, task 
force, etc. has provided a recommendation.     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends passing the resolution. 



   

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

What supporting documents are attached as part of 
the packet? 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5174 
 
RESOLUTION OF ACKNOWLEDGING THE AWARD OF A GRANT FROM THE ILLINOIS 
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE GRANT, AND 
DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kewanee, an Illinois unit of local government 

met on July 8, 2019 and adopted the following Resolutions all of which are in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Illinois: 
 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Housing Development Authority (the “Authority”) has issued to 
the City of Kewanee that certain Conditional Commitment Letter (together with any amendments 
thereto, the “Commitment”), pursuant to which the Authority has agreed to issue a grant from the 
Abandoned Residential Property Municipal Relief Program: (the “Program”) to the City of 
Kewanee in an amount not to exceed $37000.00 (the “Grant”) and the City of Kewanee will use 
the Grant funds solely and exclusively for eligible activities in connection with Program and for 
no other purpose; and  

WHEREAS, the Kewanee City Council deems it to be in the best interest of the City of 
Kewanee to accept the Grant; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1: The City Council of City of Kewanee hereby authorizes the acceptance of the 
Grant; and 

Section 2: That the City of Kewanee is authorized to accept the Commitment and enter into a 
Program Funding Agreement for the Program (the “Agreement”) with the Authority 
wherein the City of Kewanee agrees to perform Program services in return for the 
Grant; and  

Section 3:  That the City of Kewanee hereby accepts the Grant, agrees to deliver and/or execute 
the Commitment and the Agreement and any and all other instruments, certifications 
and agreements as may be necessary or desirable for the City of Kewanee to perform 
all of its obligations and duties under the Program (including any amendments, other 
agreements or supplements); and  

Section 4:  That the Gary Bradley, City Manager of the City of Kewanee and Gary Moore, 
Mayor of the City of Kewanee, without the necessity or requirement for the signature 
of another person, is hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute on 
behalf of the City of Kewanee, the Commitment, the Agreement and all other 
documents and instruments relating to the Grant to be delivered to the Authority in 
connection with the closing of the Grant and take such further action on behalf of 



 2 

the City of Kewanee as they deem necessary to effectuate the foregoing 
Resolutions; and  

 
Section 5:  That the City of Kewanee hereby ratifies, authorizes, confirms and approves any prior 

action of the City of Kewanee taken in furtherance of the foregoing Resolutions and 
any and all documents and instruments previously executed on behalf of the City of 
Kewanee in connection with the Grant. 

 
Section 6: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law.   
 
 

    Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 8th day of July 2019. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
_______________, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Gary Moore     

Councilmember Michael Komnick     
Councilmember Chris Colomer     

Councilmember Steve Faber     
Councilmember Michael Yaklich     



    

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE July 8, 2019 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution # 5175 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to execute an Agreement with Nyhart for 
Actuarial Services related to the Fire and Police 
Pension Funds.   

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Debbie Johnson, Finance & Administration 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$9,000 

Budget Line Item: 01-11, 71-14, 72-14-549 

Balance Available $12,000 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes the City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Nyhart for actuarial services to 
determine funding levels for municipal contributions 
to fire and police pension funds.     



    

BACKGROUND For several years, the City used a different provider 
to perform this service.  In completing the audit last 
year, the City was informed that the actuary formerly 
used by the City had been censured and was no 
longer able to perform such services.  The censure 
was not related to any work previously performed on 
behalf of the City of Kewanee.   
Staff requested proposals for actuarial services and 
received three responses.  Of the responses 
provided, staff believes Nyhart provides the most 
reliability, best package of deliverables, and the most 
flexibility in scheduling.  The cost is within our 
expectations as budgeted.   

SPECIAL NOTES The auditors have requested that our new actuary 
ensure past compliance in FY18 with GASB 68.  The 
additional work has a cost of $1,000 per plan.   

ANALYSIS Nyhart has a good reputation and performs the same 
work for a number of communities in Illinois, including 
Rockford, Mendota, East Peoria, and Morton.   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

A request for proposal was prepared, posted on our 
website, and emailed directly to 5 different actuary 
firms. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

N/A 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Resolution #, proposals received are available for 
review in the City Clerk’s office. 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  #5175 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH NYHART FOR 
ACTUARIAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF KEWANEE, AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN 

FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Kewanee advertised and solicited for sealed proposals for actuarial services to the City of Kewanee in 

relation to the Kewanee Police Pension Fund and the Kewanee Firefighters Pension Fund for the years ending April 
30, 2019, through April 30, 2021 with the right to renew the agreement for two (2) additional one-year periods, 
subject to acceptable performance and at the sole discretion of the City, and three proposals were received, and 
opened by Kewanee’s City Clerk at 3:00 p.m. on July 1, 2019; and  

WHEREAS,  The proposals were reviewed and evaluated based on project approach, firm experience, project 
management/personnel, and project schedule; and 

WHEREAS, The fee proposals for each entity were as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending Nyhart Foster & Foster Tepfer Consulting 
Group 

April 30, 2019 $9,000 $8,900 $11,000 

April 30, 2020 $9,000 $9,092 $11,000 

April 30, 2021 $9,300 $9,290 $11,000 

Pension Calculations $250 each $300 each Not Listed 

Annual Statements Included $25 each Not Listed 

 
WHEREAS, City staff has recommended acceptance of the proposal from Nyhart, and the City Council finds it to be in the best 

interest of the City of Kewanee to accept the proposal of Nyhart for actuarial services.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 
 
Section 1 The proposal of Nyhart is accepted and the City Manager is authorized to sign an agreement with Nyhart for 

actuarial services for fiscal years ending April 30, 2019, through April 30, 2021 with the right to renew the 
agreement for two (2) additional one-year periods, subject to acceptable performance and at the sole discretion of 
the City.       

 
Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as provided by law. 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 8th day of July 2019. 
ATTEST:   

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Gary Moore     

Councilmember Chris Colomer     
Councilmember Mike Komnick     

Councilmember Steve Faber     
Councilmember Michael Yaklich     



Proclamation 
Be it known by these presents that 

I, Gary Moore, Mayor of the City of Kewanee Illinois, 

Do hereby proclaim 
July 10th 2019 

As 

“Caleb Cleaver Day” 
in Kewanee and call all residents to join me in acknowledging the 

importance of perseverance and the unyielding spirit of this young man.  
We applaud the courage of this young man and his family.   

He could have given up, but he chose to fight. He chose to believe that hope 
is stronger than reality. He chose to overcome the suffering. He chose to 
remain positive when he could have easily given up. He made all the right 

choices, and has served as an inspiration to others. 

And for that Kewanee is proud that Caleb calls this community home.  

 

___________________ 

                                                   Mayor Gary Moore 


	COUNCIL PACKET 20190708
	Agenda_20190708.pdf
	Monday, July 8th, 2019


	CM Memo DRAFT
	Vision 2019
	COUNCIL PACKET 20190708
	COUNCIL MEETING 19-12 DRAFT.pdf
	COUNCIL MEETING 19-12
	CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	NEW BUSINESS
	OTHER BUSINESS
	ANNOUNCEMENTS

	June UCR and Calls for Service-07022019151643.pdf
	Mowing Program Budget Cost Projection.pdf
	WARRANT LIST 20190708.pdf
	Plan Commission Minutes 20190627.pdf
	Staff Report -Gubby's Lake Beer Garden.pdf
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	OrdSU Guppys Lake 20190708.pdf
	Staff Report 200 E Seventh St.pdf
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Request for continuance NC Use 200 E 7th st.pdf
	ResNonConforming200 E Seventh St 20190708.pdf
	Staff Report - APP Grant Acceptance.pdf
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	RES APP Grant Acceptance 20190708.pdf
	Staff Report- Actuary.pdf
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res Nyhart Actuarial Services 20190708.pdf
	Caleb Cleaver Proclamation.pdf


